INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR ANALYTICAL PSYCHOLOGY INTERNATIONALE GESELLSCHAFT FÜR ANALYTISCHE PSYCHOLOGIE ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE DE PSYCHOLOGIE ANALYTIQUE ASSOCIAZIONE INTERNAZIONALE DI PSICOLOGIA ANALITICA ASOCIACION INTERNACIONAL DE PSICOLOGIA ANALITICA

Minutes IAAP Delegates' Meeting

Kyoto, 31 August, 2016

Present: Tom Kelly, President (IRSJA)

Marianne Mueller, President-Elect (SGAP) Angela Connolly, Vice President (CIPA) Toshio Kawai, Vice President (AJAJ) Misser Berg, Honorary Secretary (DSAP)

The Members of the Executive Committee:

Pilar Amezaga (SUPA)
Fred Borchardt (SAAJA)
Alessandra De Coro (AIPA)
Christine Hejinian (CGJISF)
George Hogenson CSJA)
Emilija Kiehl (BJAA)
Margaret Klenck (JPA)
Batya Brosh Palmino (IIJP)
Robert Wimmer (DGAP)

Martin Amsler as Treasurer Martin Stone as Parliamentarian

Penny Pickles acted as Ethics Committee overseer to the Vote Counters

Vote Counters: Doris Lier (SGAP)

Kinbrough Besheer (PNSJA)

Marina Conti (AGAP) Victor Lopez (SOMEJ) Patricia Michan (SOMEJ) Warren Sibilla (CSJA).

Delegates and Proxies registered for the Meeting of Delegates

AGAP 25 Josephine Evetts-Secker, Maria Teresa Alvarez, Galina Angelova,

Peter Ammann, Cécile Buckenmeyer, Deborah Egger, Andrew Fellows, Shirley Halliday, John Hill, Ursula Lenz Bücker, Shiu-ya Sara Liuh, Shirley Ma, Toni O'Brien Johnson, Susan Pollard, Audrey Punnett, Yuriko Sato, Gert Sauer, Murray Stein, Craig Stephenson Ursula Ulmer, Joanne Wieland-Burston, Stacy Wirth, Luiji Zoja + 2

proxies

AIPA, Italy 16 Alessandra de Coro, Fulvia De Benedittis, Sandra Fersurella,

Giovanni Gaglione, Wanda Grosso, Maria Claudia Loreti, Patrizia Peresso, Silvia Presciuttini, Massimilano Scarpelli, Chirara Tozzi + 6

proxies

AJA, London	5	Arthur Niesser, Antonia Boll, Moira Duckworth, Ruth Williams, Martin Stone	
AJAJ, Japan	4	Yasuhiro Tanaka, Toshio Kawai, Sonoko Toyoda, Masamichi Adachi	
AJB, Brazil	9	Rogerio Mesquita, Maria Angela Guidon Hinshaw + 7 proxies	
ANZSJA, Australia	5	Joy Norton, Barbara Bassett, Lorraine Richards, Andrea Cone- Farran, Amanda Dowd	
APJQ, Québec		No delegates	
ARPA, Italy	6	Flavia D'Andreamatteo, Davide Favero, Milvia Talamini + 3 proxies	
AVPA, Venezuela		No delegates	
BJAA, London	11	Ann Casement, Julia Ryde + 9 proxies	
BSJP, Belgium	2	Jan Tilley + 1 proxy	
CGJILA, Los Angeles 8		Pamela Power, Constance Crosby + 6 proxies	
CGJIS, Seattle	2	Frances Parks + 1 proxy	
CGJISF, S. Francisco 14		Christine Hejinian, John Beebe, Jean Bolen, Maria Chiaia, Lauren Cunningham, Frances Hatfield, Justin Hecht, Margo Leahy, Liza Ravitz, Susan Ruskin, Tom Singer, Tina Stromstead, Robert Tyminski, Paul Watsky	
CGJIC, Colorado	3	Nancy Furlotti, Nancy Ortenberg + 1 proxy	
CGJSCSC, S. California 3		Willow Young + 2 proxies	
CIPA, Italy	25	Antonella Adorisio, Giuseppa Caudullo, Floriana Cutino, Marino De Marinis, Bianca Gallerano, Mario Gullí, Alda Marini, Riccardo Mondo, Maurizio Nicolosi, Pasqualino Ancona, Rosario Puglisi, Wilma Scategni, Giuseppe Vadalà, Caterina Vezzoli + 11 proxies	
CSJA, Chicago	6	Stephen Martz, Mary Dougherty, Barbara Friedman, George Hogenson, Warren Sibilla + 1 proxy	
DGAP, Germany	31	Robert Wimmer, Elisabeth Adametz, Stephan Alder, Sylvia Kipp, Michael Lindner, Jörg Rasche, Sieglinde Schreiber, Ingrid Weissenborn + 23 proxies	
DSAP, Denmark	4	Arne Vestergaard, Gunilla Midboe, Harri Virtanen, Misser Berg	
DSJA, Dallas	3	Donna Cozort, Jerome Braun, Michael Escamilla	
GAJA, Georgia		No delegates	
GAP, G.B.	5	Heba Zaphiriou-Zarifi + 4 proxies	
ICGJB, Barcelona		No delegates	
IGAP, London	5	Penny Boisset, Jane Bacon, Hans van den Hooff, Tia Kuchmy + 1 proxy	

IIJP, Israel	4	Yehuda Abramovitz, Tristan Troudart, Batia Brosh, Batia Stern	
INDIVIDUAL Ms	9	Maria Aydemir, Martin Skala, Krzysztof Rutkowski, Ana Deligiannis Maria Paz Albalos, Claudia Grez, Marilene Rodrigues, Heyong Shen <mark>,</mark> Gao Lan	
IRSJA, Interregional	12	Herbert Price, Sharon Green, Susan Negely, Mark Winborn + 8 proxies	
ISAP, Israel	2	Dafna Rovner +1 proxy	
ISJA, Ireland	1	Orla Crowley	
JAWA, Washington		No delegates	
JPA, New York	5	Margaret Klenck, Beverley Zabriskie, Michael Marsman, Harry Fogarty, Elizabeth Colistra	
KAJA, Korea	3	Kim Seongminne, Kang Cheol-Joong, Jin-Sook Kim	
LAAP, Lithuania	2	Grazina Gudaite, Goda Ruksaite	
LIRPA, Italy	2	Caterina Arcidiacono + 1 proxy	
NAAP, Netherlands	2	Barbara Miller + 1 proxy	
NCSJA, North Carolina		No delegates	
NESJA, New England 7		Annette Hanson, Jill Fischer, Joseph Cambray + 4 proxies	
NIJA, Israel	4	Gadi Maoz, Moshe Alon, Yoram Inspector + 1 proxy	
NMSJA, New Mexico	2	Bill Kotsch + 1 proxy	
NYAAP, New York	5	Royce Froehlich, Ilona Melker + 3 proxies	
OAJA		No delegates	
ÖGAP, Austria	6	Eva Pattis + 5 proxies	
OVAJA, Ohio	1	Diane Sherwood	
PAJA, Philadelphia	2	Ronnie Landau + 1 proxy	
PNSJA, Pacific NW	2	Robert Stuckey, Dunbar Carpenter	
PSJA, Pittsburg		No delegates	
RSAP, Russia	5	Elena Pourtova, Natalia Serebrennikova, Natalia Pavlikova Nikita Chetverikov, Julia Kazakevich	
SAAJA, South Africa	3	Fred Borchardt, John Gosling, Grace Reid	
SAP, London	13	Warren Colman, Penny de Haas, Penny Pickles, Martin Schmidt Jan Wiener, Susanna Wright + 7 proxies	
SBPA, Belgium	2	Michèle Desonai, Marie Hénin	
SBrPA, Brazil	15	André Pinheiro, Alvaro Ancona de Faria, Selma Mantovani, Aurea	

		M	A.I		
		Afonso Caetano, Teresa Machado, Cynthia Lira, Sunsar Maria Silvia Costa Pessoa + 7 proxies	1 Albert		
SEPA, Spain	3	Juan Carlos Albaladejo + 2 proxies			
SFPA, France	8	Brigit Soubrouillard, François Martin Vallas, Claire Raguet + 5 proxies			
SGAP, Zürich	15	Irene Bischof, Ruth Ammann, Hans Jürg Brunner, Renate Daniel Elisabeth Grözinger, Robert Hinshaw, Verena Kast, Doris Lier, Marianne Meister, Marianne Müller, Ingrid Riedel, Jürg Vetter + 3 Proxies			
SJASD, San Diego		No delegates			
SOMEJ, Mexico	1	Hebe Bolio			
SUPA, Uruguay	1	Pablo Gelsi			
SVAJ, Venezuela	2	Margarita Mendez + 1 proxy			
WCAJA, W. Canada	1	Karen Evers-Fahey			
Total Delegates and Proxy Votes Registered:					
Total IAAP Groups (59) and Individual Member Group:					
Societies/Groups/Individual Member Group represented at Delegates' Meeting:					
Quorum Established					

1. President's Welcome and Introduction of the EC

I would like to welcome you to the Meeting of the Delegates, the triennial business meeting of the IAAP that takes place once per administration. It is my honour to convene and chair this meeting as President of the IAAP.

Before we begin with the official business of our meeting, I would like to make a few announcements. The first has to do with translation. This is the first time that we do not have simultaneous translation during the Meeting of Delegates. Based on the experience of previous Congresses where there was dissatisfaction with the quality of translation services and, because of the exorbitant cost of translation, the EC proposed relying on the translation skills of our membership in order to assure that everyone understands what is being discussed. This proposal was approved by the Council of Societies at its meeting in Zurich in February 2016. This decision has also kept the registration cost for this Congress as low as possible.

We would therefore ask that Delegates sit with colleagues from the same language group and that one of the members agrees to translate for their fellow Delegates to ensure that everyone understands what is being discussed, proposed or voted upon.

We have volunteers available to provide translation into the five official languages of the IAAP during the discussion. Please feel free to make a comment or to ask a question in one of the five official languages.

While this is an innovation for the Meeting of Delegates, we want to ensure that everyone at this

meeting understands and feels included. You are free to express yourself in one of the five official languages of the IAAP and we will have someone translate for the Delegates.

The English version of the reports will be projected onto the screens by the stage and in the hall, as you can see.

Secondly, I would like to welcome the observers. Please note that observers are not allowed to contribute to the discussions during this meeting. The discussions are restricted to delegates only.

Thirdly, regarding the bathroom break. As you can note from the documents provided, we have a very full agenda. There will be no official bathroom break, however, anyone may leave the room at any time for a short break. I will make every effort to inform you in advance of items coming up for a vote so that you can decide on the optimal moment to leave if you have to.

While the official business of the Association has been guided by the work of the outstanding members of this Executive Committee over the past three years, I remind you that the Meeting of Delegates is the highest organ of our Association and it is at this meeting that decisions are taken which will determine the direction of the IAAP for the next three years. It is also at this meeting that the democratic process of electing your representatives is accomplished.

I remind you also that, as per Article 17 of the Constitution, quorum for this meeting is a quorum of presence. The quorum for today is 332, including Delegates present and proxies.

I would like to begin by introducing the members of the Executive Committee:

IAAP Executive Committee Officers (2013 - 2016):

President: Tom Kelly (IRSJA, the Inter-Regional Society of Jungian Analysts)

President Elect: Marianne Müller (SGAP, die Schweizerische Gesellschaft für Analytishce

Psychologie)

Vice-President: Angela Connolly (CIPA, Centro Italiana do Psicologia Analitica) Vice-President: Toshio Kawai (AJAJ, Association of Jungian Psychologists, Japan) Honorary Secretary: Misser Berg (DSAP, the Danish Society for Analytical Psychology)

Group Member Representatives of the Executive Committee (2013 – 2016):

AIPA, Associazione Italiana por lo Studio della Psicologia Analitica: Alessandra De Coro

BJAA, the British Jungian Analytic Association: Emilija Kiehl

CGJISF, the C. G. Jung Institute of San Francisco: Christine Hejinian

CSJA, the Chicago Society of Jungian Analysts: George Hogenson

DGAP, the Deutschen Gesellschaft für Analytische Psychologie: Robert Wimmer

IIJP, the Israel Institute for Jungian Psychology: Batya Brosh Palmino

JPA, the Jungian Psychoanalytic Association: Margaret Klenck

SAAJA, the South African Association of Jungian Analysts: Fred Borchardt

SUPA, Sociedad Uruguaya de Psicologia Analitica: Pilar Amezaga

The IAAP was blessed to have such an outstanding team of individuals to carry out the tasks and responsibilities required to ensure a smooth and efficient functioning. I am grateful to each member of this Executive Committee for their hard work, tireless energy and good humor in accomplishing the numerous responsibilities they had to carry in this administration.

I would also like to present Martin Amsler, the Treasurer and Attorney of the IAAP, and to thank him for his careful oversight of legal and financial matters.

2. Appointment of the Parliamentarian

The President TK introduced the Parliamentarian for this meeting: Martin Stone who kindly agreed to serve in this capacity.

Martin Stone explained the voting procedures regarding votes by show of hands and with proxies.

3. Appointment of the Vote Counters and Introduction of the Agenda

The President TK introduced the vote counters and thanked them for their service to the community:

Doris Lier (SGAP) Kinbrough Besheer (PNSJA) Marina Conti (AGAP) Victor Lopez (SOMEJ) Patricia Michan (SOMEJ) Warren Sibilla (CSJA)

The Ethics Committee appointed Penny Pickles to oversee the work of the vote counters. The President expressed gratitude to Penny Pickles for performing this task.

Vote to accept the vote counters. Unanimous.

The President TK stated that the agenda for the Meeting of Delegates was sent to the President of each Group Member and to all the Individual Members at the end of May, as required by the Constitution, and that it had been included in the delegates' packets. TK informed that item number 21 would allow for Any Other Business and asked whether there were items to add. There were no items to add.

Vote to approve the agenda. Unanimous

4. Guidelines and Procedures for Conducting the MoD

The President TK explained that the Guidelines which were included in the Delegates' packet were the Guidelines approved at the Meeting of Delegates in Copenhagen in 2013. TK also informed that this meeting will be conducted according to Swiss law because the IAAP is incorporated in Switzerland.

5. Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of Delegates in Copenhagen 2013

Following the agenda, the President TK asked for the approval of the minutes from the Meeting of Delegates in Copenhagen, 2013.

Vote to approve the minutes: Approved with three abstentions.

6. List of Deceased Members

The President announced his solemn and sad duty to read to the Delegates the names of the members deceased during the three years since the last meeting in 2013.

Deceased Members 2013-2016

Kimberley Arendt, IRSJA, DSJA

Nathalia Balab'aeva, IM
Henrik Balch, DSAP
Klaus Behnke, DGAP
Gerda Bertram, DGAP
Freya Bleibler, SGAP, AGAP
Louise Bode, CSJA, CGJIS
Leonhard Braun, DGAP
Maggie Bromell, NESJA

Antonie Brugsch-Hauckold, DGAP

Helge Böttger, DGAP Alain Canard, SBPA Glen Carlson, CGJIC Cesare Casati, ARPA

Crittenden Brooks, IRSJA

Margaret Caulfield, ANZSJA

Margaret Clark, SAP

Paco Grande Crespo, SEPA

Silvio Cusin, AIPA Wilson Daniel, ANZSJA Gerwin Davis, SAAJA

Alberto André de Mendonça Delpino, AJB

Dale Dodd, ANZSJA
Andrea Dykes, AJA
Christoph Eich, SGAP
David Eidenberg, CGJILA
Fulvia Faretra, CIPA
Wolfgang Fischer, DGAP
Vicki Gardiner, SAP
James Hall, IRSJA, AGAP
Kazuhiko Higuchi, AJAJ
George Hogel, CGJISF

Michael Horne, CGJISF, CGJIS

Joell Hyman, PNSJA Selma Hyman, PNSJA Robin Jaqua, PNSJA Françoise O'Kane, AGAP Matteo Karawatt, CIPA Rita Knipe, CGJILA Yvonne Kocher, SGAP Lila S. Kramer, CGJISF Erika Lachauer, DGAP Hanna Laros, DGAP Ann Loftus, NESJA René Malamud, AGAP Ron Malashock, SJASD Giuseppina Grassi De Marsanich, CIPA

Sheila Marwood, SAP Adriana Mazzarella, CIPA

Julia Jackson Christian Preston McAfee,

AGAP

Mokusen Miyuki, CGJILA Norah Moore, SAP Robert Moore, CSJA

Priscilla Murr, AGAP, IRSJA Walter Odajnyk, CGJSCSC, AGAP

Luciano Perez, CIPA Menachem Perry, NIJA

Ian Player; an honorary member of the

IAAP, SAAJA

Ida Cappelli Porena, CIPA Emanuela Raso, AIPA Keith Reed, SAP Maria Riebl, OGAP

Leland Harold Roloff, CSJA, CGJIS

Mery Rosemblit, SBrPA
Virginia Beane Rutter, CGJISF
Magdalena Rüetschi, SGAP
Carlos Alberto Correia Salles, AJB
Alane Sauder MacGuire, JPA
Raymund Schaeffer, DGAP
Monika Schnell, DGAP

Brigitte Sennwald, SGAP, AGAP Margaret Shanahan, CSJA

Anni Simon, ISAP

Geraldine Spare, CGJISF Janet Spencer, AGAP, IGAP Mary Jo Spencer, CGJISF Antonio Speranza, AIPA

Zaza Stefanovic Camenzind, AGAP Maude Ann Taylor, CGJSCSC Bodo Tschacksch, DGAP Stina Thybjerg, IM (2007) Patrick Tummon, SAAJA Michele Angelo Venier, AIPA Jane Bennett Wallgren, AGAP

Birgit Weidner, DGAP Eli Weisstub, ISAP

William Willeford, GAJA, IRSJA (AGAP

member through 2007) Cecilia Zanatta, AJB Bernardino Zanini, CGJILA Nathalia Z'ubareva, IM

The President asked the Delegates to observe with him a minute of silence out of respect for the deceased members.

7. President's Report

The President's Report is meant to provide the Delegates with an overview of the activities of

the Executive Committee in the past three years in order to help prepare you for the decisions you will be called on to make during this meeting. In the interest of time, I will restrain myself to giving you a brief overview of the work done by each Standing Committee, Sub-Committee, Working Party and Consultation Service in the course of this administration.

Standing Committees:

- 1. Ethics Committee composed of Ann Casement (BJAA), Chair; Penny Pickles (SAP), Honorary Secretary; Paula Boechat (AJB); Carole Beebe Tarantelli (CIPA); Christian Gaillard (SFPA) and Sonoko Toyoda (AJAJ, AGAP). In addition to providing ethical oversight for Individual Members of the IAAP, the Ethics Committee also reviewed the ethics documents, including Code of Ethics and Procedures for Dealing with an Ethics Complaint, for each group applying either to become an new Group Member of the IAAP or requesting a change of status from Non-Training to Training. The Ethics Committee acted as a resource on questions of ethics and provided consultation to existing Group Members in the revision of their ethics documents and on difficult questions that emerged concerning proper procedures. The Ethics Committee also worked on amendments to the ethics documents of the IAAP following the recommendation of the Meeting of Delegates in Copenhagen in 2013. These items are on the agenda for our meeting today and will be presented later for a vote by the Delegates. The Chair also consulted to the Executive Committee and to a number of Sub-Committees and Working Parties of the IAAP throughout this administration.
- **2. Program Committee (PC)** composed of Toshio Kawai (AJAJ), Chair and Vice-President; Stephan Alder (DGAP); Alvaro Ancona (SBrPA); Grazina Gudaite (LAAP); Patricia Vesey-McGrew (NESJA); Tom Kelly, President; Marianne Müller, President-Elect; Angela Connolly, Vice-President; and Misser Berg, Honorary Secretary.

The Program Committee had two face-to-face meetings, the first to choose a theme for this congress and the second to make a selection from the proposals submitted. The result of the work of this extraordinary committee is the program we have had the pleasure of enjoying here in Kyoto. This committee worked extremely hard and efficiently to put together a wide-ranging and innovative program for this congress. I would also add that the humor and positive energy of this committee made accomplishing its task a true pleasure.

- **3. Organizing Committee (OC)** with Yasuhiro Tanaka (AJAJ) as Chair; Sonoda Toyoko (AJAJ, AGAP), Masamichi Adachi (AJAJ, AGAP), Chihiro Hatanaka, Shima Morisaki and Masako Kubota (Secretary). We are indebted to this committee for the efficient organization of this congress and for the warm and hospitable welcome we have received. They have worked tirelessly to ensure that we feel at home. We extend our heartfelt thanks and gratitude for everything they have done.
- **4. Education Committee:** Co-Chaired by Misser Berg and Angela Connolly and composed of all the members of the Executive Committee.

The changes implemented in the Education Committee in the last administration to provide clear, transparent and coherent structures and processes have grown and developed more strongly. In this administration, the main work of the Ed Com has been to constantly review and revise the procedures and structures of the Ed Com to ensure the highest possible standards for our program. Through the continuous collaboration with the Finance Officer and the accountant, the Ed Com has carefully overseen and monitored all expenses. Careful and detailed controls over the yearly progress of routers have been implemented through the router information form, the self -evaluation form and the Consultation Evaluation Form from all the supervisors. Routers who regularly do not send in their forms are suspended by the EC.

Regulations governing the number of hours of Skype analysis have been modified to bring them into line with current practice. 90 hours can be by Skype and one hour of Skype counts for one hour of face-to-face analysis. Regulations governing supervision have been modified. At least 25% and not more than 50% should be by group supervision and two hours of group count for

one hour of individual supervision.

As the routers are not members of the IAAP, all ethical matters concerning routers will be dealt with by the EC. New guidelines and procedures for cases of ethical complaints against routers have been put into place and approved by the EC.

The Router Handbook and the DG Handbook have been completely revised and approved by the EC.

The number of routers has been carefully monitored and assessed during this administration in order to keep faith with the wishes expressed at the 2013 Council of Societies. The numbers after Kyoto will be in line with previous estimates.

Given that the purpose of the router program is to eventually form Group Members, the Ed Com carefully assesses the number of routers in each country and region to ensure that there can eventually be sufficient numbers of Individual Members to allow the formation of GMs.

In an effort to encourage and expand the participation of IAAP Group Members involved in offering training to professionals in countries where there is no existing IAAP Group Member, in this administration, we have introduced and established an Affiliate Candidate Program. In this program, an IAAP Group Member takes on the entire responsibility for training of the "Affiliate Candidates" in a country where there is no existing IAAP Group Member. While the Group Member in question is entirely in charge of the training, because the affiliate candidates can in most cases not become members of the training Group Member, the screening interviews, intermediate and final exams are given jointly by analysts from the training Group Member and the IAAP. Upon successful completion of their training, Affiliate Candidates can become Individual Members of the IAAP and, eventually, form a Group Member of the IAAP in their own country. An Affiliate Candidate Handbook has been put in place with all the regulations and procedures governing the partnership between the IAAP, the Group Member and the Developing Group or Router Group.

To date, we have three Affiliate Candidate programs: CIPA, Sicily working with the group in Malta; DSAP working with the group in Estonia-Finland; and, RSAP working with the group in Belarus.

Working Groups of Education Committee:

The Curriculum Working Group with Joy Norton, Chair, Olivia Del Castillo (SEPA), Beverley Zabriskie (JPA), Stan Marlan (PSJA), Gustav Bovensiepen (DGAP) and, Misser Berg (DSAP) has worked very hard on constructing a basic curriculum for the routers that allows both for consistency and flexibility of content. This group has worked cooperatively and conscientiously to provide a structured curriculum. The results of their work were presented in a breakout session on Tuesday afternoon. We are indebted to them for this important contribution that promises to provide more consistency and structure for the routers and to provide guidance for Group Members working on changing status to become a Group Member offering training.

The Communications and Resources Working Group composed of Walter Boechat (AJB), Chair, François Martin-Vallas (SFPA), Lev Khegai (RSAP), Emilija Kiehl (BJAA), Patricia Michan (SOMEJ), Don Williams (IRSJA), and George Hogenson (CSJA) worked on looking into ways of improving communication between IAAP members involved in working with Developing and Router Groups as Liaison Persons and Supervisors. Their work was presented in a breakout session yesterday afternoon.

The Research and Evaluation Working Group, composed of John Merchant (ANZSJA), Chair, Jan Wiener (SAP), Natalia Alexandrova (RSAP), Graham Fuller (SAP), Yasuhiro Tanaka (AJAJ), Denise Ramos (SBrPA), and Christian Roesler (DGAP) had as its main purpose an investigation into the quality and outcome of the router program. A thorough review of the literature on the use of Skype and other means of telecommunication in analysis, supervision and training was

followed by a survey to investigate the strengths and weaknesses of the router program. Former and current routers as well as supervisors, Liaison Persons and analysts involved in teaching were interviewed in person or via questionnaire. The results of this Working Group will be presented in a breakout session on Friday afternoon at 13:30. We are very grateful and indebted to John Merchant and the members of this Working Group for their dedication to this project and for the quality of their work.

Sub-Committees:

1. The Academic Sub-Committee was co-chaired by Alessandra De Coro and Toshio Kawai, and composed of Pilar Amezaga, George Hogenson and Margaret Klenck. During this administration the Academic Committee accomplished the following:

Provided seed money or funds for co-sponsoring of the following conferences and events:

- 1. The Joint Jung/Lacan Conference in Cambridge, 2014.
- 2. The conference at the University of Wroclaw in Poland in 2014 on "C. G. Jung's Theory".
- 3. The first conference on "Analysis and Activism: Social and Political Contributions of Jungian Psychology", London, 2014.
- 4. Die Dreilängertagung in Vienna in 2015 on the topic "1914 2014: In Transformation".
- 5. "The Development and Application of Jung's theory of Psychological Types" in New York, 2015, organized by JPA.
- 6. "The Jung Neumann Letters" in Jerusalem in 2015.
- 7. The conference on "Violence and Reconciliation between People from Germany, Russia and Ukraine", in Potsdam, 2015.
- 8. The First Canadian Symposium, "Exploration of the Relationship between Psyche, Canadian Landscape and History", Banff, 2015.
- 9. The East Asia Conference of Analytical Psychology, Kyoto, 2015.
- 10. The Third European Conference of Analytical Psychology, "Encounters, Transitions, Developments: Analysis at the Cultural Crossroads", in Trieste, Italy, 2015.
- 11. The Latin American Conference of Analytical Psychology, "Conflict and Creativity: Archetypal Bridges and Borders", Buenos Aires, Argentina, 2015.
- 12. The Art & Psyche International Conference, "Layers and Liminality", Syracuse, Italy, 2015.
- 13. The Seventh International Conference of Analytical Psychology and Chinese Culture, "Confronting Collective Trauma: Archetype, Culture and Healing", Macau, China, 2015.
- 14. The Second Conference on "Analysis and Social Activism: Social and Political Contributions of Jungian Psychology", Rome, Italy, 2015.
- 15. The conference on "The Evil of Violence in Post-Modernity: Depth Psychology, Humanism and Religiosity in the Third Millennium", Rome, Italy, 2016, organized by LIRPA.
- 16. The conference entitled "Interiority, Truth and Psychology", Malibu, California, 2016, organized by ISPSDI.

In addition to providing funds in support of the above-mentioned conferences, the Academic Sub-Committee also helped organize and execute the Vth Academic Conference on Analytical Psychology and Jungian Studies sponsored jointly by the IAAP, the International Association for Jungian Studies (IAJS) and Yale University. The theme of this conference held in New Haven, Connecticut, in 2015 was, "Psyche, Spirit and Science: Negotiating Contemporary Social and Cultural Concerns".

The Academic Sub-Committee also provided funds for the following research projects:

- 1. Research project by the Research & Evaluation Working Group with John Merchant, Chair, on the effectiveness of the router program.
- 2. Sandplay Research Project for Children from disadvantaged areas of Cape Town, South Africa, with Eva Pattis, John Gosling and Philippa Colinese.
- 3. Research project on the efficacy of a Jungian approach in therapy conducted by members from the three German-speaking IAAP Group Members, DGAP, SGAP and ÖGAP. This project will include over 500 subjects.

Finally, the Academic Sub-Committee provided information to the members of the IAAP as to how to apply for funds, along with standardized application forms which were available on the IAAP website.

As is evident from this report, the Academic Sub-Committee worked extremely hard and was very busy in this administration.

2. The Publications and Communications Sub-Committee was composed of George Hogenson, Chair, Pilar Amezaga, Misser Berg, Fred Borchardt and Emilija Kiehl.

Website: the sub-committee was charged at the beginning of this administration with reviewing and revising the website of the IAAP. Technical consultation was contracted with SGS Media in Copenhagen and George Hogenson, with the assistance of Misser Berg, assumed administrative responsibility for the site. The configuration was simplified and the major documents of the Association posted on the website.

After a recurrent series of hacking incidents as well as a number of other strange recurring problems, a decision was made in early 2016 to begin a complete redesign and technical rebuild of the website. This is now nearing completion and should, by the time of the Congress, be well in place.

Membership List: A review of the membership list at the beginning of this administration revealed the existence of three distinct lists that contained several hundred inconsistencies from one list to another. A decision was made to undertake a careful review of the lists in an effort to reconcile them and correct the inconsistencies. An outside consultant with extensive experience in managing large databases was contacted and agreed to do a preliminary review and reconciliation of the lists on a pro bono basis. This allowed the IAAP Secretary, Selma Gubser, to build a list that reflected the best information on the membership list at that point.

A decision was then taken to ask each Group Member to review their subsection of the member list and to return the correct information to the secretary. With this information in hand, we were able to construct a corrected and simplified members' list which was then posted to the IAAP website. While there are doubtless still errors in this list, the IAAP is now working from a more closely monitored membership list under the careful administration of Selma Gubser.

Although we have been successful in terms of reconciling most of the basic errors in the old lists, it will be important, once the new website is up and running, for members to review their information and update the system to reflect their personal preferences for contact information.

MailChimp: with the revised membership list and an expressed desire in this administration to improve and simplify communication with the membership, it has become possible to provide the membership with regular email announcements of forthcoming conferences and other news. With the assistance of the IAAP's technical consultant, an account with the MailChimp function was established which allowed regular communications of conferences, information on the International Congress and other matters to be provided to the membership. Since January 2014 when the MailChimp service was initiated, over 50 "email blasts" have been sent to the approximately 3300 members of the IAAP.

Newssheet and Newsletter: Emilija Kiehl has almost single-handedly assumed responsibility for the edition of the Newssheet and Newsletter. Two annual Newssheets provide the membership with information on the IAAP and on Group Members and Developing Groups as well as reviews of journals and communications from the officers. The Newssheet reflects the highest standards of aesthetic composition and editorial care. With the publication of the most recent Newssheet, a decision was taken to post the Newssheet to the public area on the IAAP website. This decision was taken with the intention of promoting interest in Analytical Psychology. A decision was also taken to redesign the cover art for both the Newssheet and the Newsletter. Honorary Secretary, Misser Berg, produced templates for the 'Moonscape" design that had already been in use and is now the standard and consistent cover format for these publications. With the availability of the MailChimp function, it is also possible to send the Newssheet to all IAAP members in electronic form.

Copenhagen Congress Proceedings: Emilija Kiehl did an outstanding job as editor of the proceedings of our last congress in Copenhagen.

Online discussion forum: this sub-committee also hosted a two-week online discussion forum for the membership on the finances of the IAAP.

Council of Societies: Research into using different programs to make the Council of Societies meeting accessible to Presidents of IAAP Group Members unable to attend in person proved to be untenable. As a last resort, a summary Skype session at the end of the CoS was held in which six Group Member Presidents participated.

The work of this sub-committee in this administration has been endless and also rather challenging. Weekly Skype sessions were required in order to work on all of the problems encountered and hours of work were put into getting the Members' List in order. Each member of this sub-committee has put in countless hours of work for the benefit of the membership. The volunteer work done by the members of this sub-committee has saved us easily 150,000 CHF over the three years of this administration. We owe them a huge debt of gratitude and offer them our profound and sincere thanks.

- **3. The Group Member Application Sub-Committee** was chaired by President-Elect, Marianne Müller, with Angela Connolly, Toshio Kawai, Fred Borchardt and Tom Kelly (ex-officio) as contributing members. Over its three-year term, this sub-committee received nine applications for Group Membership or change in status of membership. One of the applications could not be processed, as it did not fulfill the formal requirements. Six groups have applied to become a new IAAP Group Member, four without Training Status and two with Training Status. Two Group Members have applied for a change in status from non-Training to Training. Details on each applying Group will be provided when we get to item 17 of our agenda.
- Each Group Member application requires conscientious attention and detailed review of the documents, including the founding statement and Constitution, to ensure that democratic process is enshrined in each Constitution. In addition, careful co-ordination with the Ethics Committee, charged with reviewing the ethics documents, is required. The work entailed in this committee is both time-consuming and demanding. The members of this sub-committee have worked tirelessly and are to be commended and thanked for the responsible manner they have accomplished their work.
- **4. The Honorary Membership Sub-Committee** was chaired by Fred Borchardt and composed of Margaret Klenck, Robert Wimmer and Misser Berg. The sub-committee received a number of nominations and, after careful consideration, made five recommendations for Honorary Membership, which the EC wholeheartedly endorsed. Details of the five nominees will be provided later when we come to item 14 of our agenda. In addition to processing these nominations, this sub-committee invested a tremendous amount of soulful and creative energy in coming up with a way of acknowledging newly elected Honorary Members in a concrete manner. We are thankful to them for their hard work and creative endeavor, which will be revealed to you later in the report from the sub-committee.
- **5. The Fund-Raising Sub-Committee** was chaired by George Hogenson and composed of Christine Hejinian, Emilija Kiehl and Robert Wimmer. The sub-committee secured a donation of 10,000 USD from the Oswald Family Foundation to support attendance of routers and members of Developing Groups at this Congress. In addition, the Rodtraud and Gert Sauer Foundation also provided generous funding in the amount of 8000 EUR to support attendance at this congress of routers and members of Developing Groups. We offer our special thanks to the Oswald Family and to Rodtraud and Gert Sauer for their solid and enduring support and assistance in these projects.

Thanks to a significant donation from a very generous donor, who wishes to remain anonymous, the Foundation for the Advancement of Jungian Psychoanalysis (FAJP) in London has been very generous in supporting the work done by IAAP analysts from around the world with Developing

Groups and Router Groups. We are very grateful to the trustees of FAJP for their cautious and thoughtful consideration and processing of requests for financial assistance.

Working Parties:

1. The Child and Adolescent Working Party was chaired by Christine Henjinian and composed of Batya Brosh Palmoni and Alessandra Do Coro. In addition to maintaining the website dedicated to work with children and adolescents, the members of this Working Party have worked hard to find creative avenues for Jungian colleagues who work with this client population to meet each other and to share their work. As a result of their efforts, breakout sessions at this Congress that address work with children and adolescents are color-coded to encourage therapists with this interest to meet, to share their experiences and perhaps make plans for future meetings or conferences.

In addition, this Working Party has worked to facilitate awareness of the contributions to the evolution of Jungian theory that Jungian child analysts/psychotherapists are making. I would add that the three members of this Working Party have been particularly invested in and dedicated to reaching their goals. We can be thankful to them for their accomplishments as well as for their determination and their innovative ideas.

2. The Translation Working Party has been chaired by Misser Berg and composed of Toshio Kawai, Pilar Amezaga, Emilija Kiehl and Robert Wimmer. First established in the previous administration, this Working Party has worked to explore how the IAAP can best serve the membership with regard to translation. Based on an exhaustive study of the use of simultaneous translation services and of the inferior quality of these services at previous IAAP Congresses, the Translation Working Party recommended that, for this Congress, an attempt should be made to make do without simultaneous interpretation. As at the Congress in Copenhagen, text translation of the plenary presentations would be projected in English on the screens in the conference hall and translation into the five official languages of the IAAP would be provided on USB keys in the registration packet. For the Meeting of Delegates, people will be present to ensure translation into the five official languages should they be needed. Delegates would be encouraged to sit with colleagues using the same language in order to ensure freedom of expression in one of the five official languages of the IAAP during discussions and further, to ensure that what is being presented and discussed is understood.

Among the many factors considered in making this recommendation, the cost of simultaneous interpretation services rated rather high and carried significant weight. Had simultaneous interpretation been used for this Congress, the registration fee would have had to be at least 100 CHF higher.

With the full support of the EC, this recommendation from the Translation Working Party was presented to the Council of Societies at its meeting in Zurich in February. The vote in favor of supporting the recommendation of the Working Party was unanimous.

As already stated, this is a first and somewhat of an initial trial of this experiment. The members of the Translation Working Party, with the help of a number of IAAP analysts including Henry Abramovitch, Pilar Amezaga, Misser Berg, Yasuhiro Tanaka and Patricia Vesey-McGrew, have put together an evaluation form which will be sent to all participants shortly after the close of the Congress. We would kindly ask you to complete this questionnaire and to encourage the other participants to do so in order to provide helpful feedback for the planning of future congresses. We count on your feedback to improve future congresses.

The members of this Working Party have had to carry the weight of their recommendation throughout the three years of this administration. We are grateful to them for struggling to find a viable solution to this very complex conundrum and thank them for their dedication and hard work.

3. The Organizational and Advisory Working Party was chaired by Martin Stone and composed of Pilar Amezaga from Uruguay, Alessandra De Coro from Italy, John Gosling from South Africa, Tom Kelly from Canada, Marianne Müller from Switzerland, Andrew Samuels from

the United Kingdom, Olga Sidelnikova from Russia, Anne Springer from Germany, Yasuhiro Tanaka from Japan, Patricia Vesey-McGrew from the United States, and Arne Vestergaard from Denmark. This Working Party was charged with looking into the current state of Jungian psychology in order to determine trends, challenges and obstacles in training programs as well as in professional practice and to see whether, and if so how, the IAAP could be responsive in a helpful manner to these challenges and changes. A qualitative questionnaire was put together and sent to each member of the Working Party with a request for him or her to then forward the questionnaire to the President of each Group Member in their regions of the world.

The results of this survey were presented in a breakout session on Monday afternoon.

I am particularly grateful to the members of this Working Party for the investment of their time and energy, for their hard work, for their dedication to this project and, last but not least, for their good humor. Heartfelt thanks, on behalf of the IAAP, for this helpful contribution to the discussion of the challenges our profession faces.

4. Effectiveness Research Working Party was chaired by Emilija Kiehl, and consisted of Pilar Amezaga, Chris Milton from New Zealand and Christian Roesler from Germany. This Working Party emerged from discussions at the Council of Societies on the need to have more information on research projects showing the lasting effectiveness of a depth psychology theoretical approach and clinical technique. The task of this Working Party is to select research articles that will then be posted on the IAAP website and made available to all members of the IAAP. In addition, the members of this Working Party intend to look into ways of encouraging our colleagues world-wide to carry out joint research projects and to encourage the inclusion of this component in analytic training. We are very grateful to the members of this Working Party for their diligent work and for making this information readily available and easily accessible. Their work is a great service for us all.

Consultation Service:

The Consultation Service was chaired by Tom Kelly and composed of Marianne Müller, Angela Connolly, Batya Brosh Palmoni, Christine Hejinian and Margaret Klenck. Consultation is meant to offer a service to Group Members experiencing internal strife, discord, or conflict among their members, with another Group Member or with an Individual Member. As the name suggests, it provides an outside resource with a more objective perspective when conflicts arise.

In this administration, the Consultation Service was formally engaged in working with one Group Member. A number of Group Members also made use of the Consultation Service on a more informal basis as a sounding board for discussion and advice on difficulties experienced in their Group.

The Consultation Service is an important resource for the membership of the IAAP. Group Members could benefit from knowing that this service is available to them in times of trouble.

Advisory Board:

The Advisory Board has consisted of Honorary Secretary, Misser Berg and past president, Murray Stein. The board has reviewed the application by two Group Members wishing to host the next IAAP Congress in 2019. The feasibility as well as the financial realities of each proposal has been given careful consideration. We will hear the report from the Advisory Board when we get to this item later on the agenda.

Allied Organizations:

Allied Organizations are professional bodies with whom we share common interests and with whom we have a jointly agreed formal arrangement with contact at the presidential level. The IAAP has formal relations with five Allied Organizations: the International Association of Jungian Studies (IAJS), the Philemon Foundation, The International Society for Sandplay Therapy (ISST) and the Marion Woodman Foundation. In this administration, the EC voted unanimously to accept

the Eranos Foundation as an Allied Organization. We look forward to possible collaboration with the Eranos Foundation in future.

In this administration the IAAP and IAJS collaborated on a joint conference at Yale University in 2015, as already stated in the Academic Sub-Committee report. Discussions with the Co-Presidents of IAJS about a future collaboration with the next administration have already begun. In August 2015, the President of the IAAP was invited to attend the conference and consult with the board of ISST at its conference in Ottawa.

While no joint projects with the other Allied Associations took place in this administration, relations with each of them remain cordial.

Special Thanks

Finally, I would like to officially offer thanks to Daniel Gubser, the IAAP accountant, for his invaluable service in keeping a hawkish eye on expenditures and in maintaining the books in order and in compliance with Swiss law. This is no minor accomplishment!

In addition, I would like to extend my thanks to Selma Gubser, IAAP Secretary for rising to the challenge of learning the ropes of this rather complex organization and for her efficient help throughout the years of this administration.

Before I come to a close of my report, I would like to mention one more item of importance. Some of you who have attended previous IAAP congresses or IAAP sponsored conferences may have noticed that the Presidential Secretary, Mariuccia Tresoldi, is not with us this time. Mariuccia has had some serious health problems and was unable to attend this congress. This report would not be complete without mention of Mariuccia, our thanks for her work for the IAAP in the past and our best wishes to her for a speedy recovery.

This brings me to the end of my report. I thank you for your time, patience and for your attention.

Tom Kelly President

8. Treasurer's Report

Mr. Amsler presented the official report to the Meeting of Delegates stating that, in his capacity as Treasurer for the IAAP, and confirmed that he had audited the Annual Accounts along the guidelines of legal regulations. He found that the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statement are in conformity with bookkeeping. In addition, the provisions of the Constitution as well as legal valuation principles have been followed in the statement of the Financial Assets. Mr. Amsler recommended approval of the financial reports.

TK thanked Mr. Amsler for his report.

Vote to accept the Treasurer's Report: Unanimous except for one abstention.

TK stated that the EC recommended the Treasurer's reelection for the next three years.

Vote to reelect Martin Amsler to the position of IAAP Treasurer for the next administration: Unanimous

9. Internal Audit

The President TK then asked George Hogenson to read the statement from the Internal Auditors (George Hogenson and Christina Hejinian). The report confirmed that the finances of the IAAP have been managed with due care and attention.

10. Finance Officer's Report

The Finance Officer, Marianne Müller (MM), presented the financial statements for 2013, 2014, 2015. The report had already been sent to the Presidents of the Group Members in May. This was followed by an on-line discussion forum on finances with the members of the IAAP from June 20 to July 4, 2016.

MM explained how in this administration it had been a challenge to manage the whole organisation with a 12% reduction in dues and to maintain the services for the membership under these circumstances. This was possible however thanks to careful oversight and management of expenses and very careful control of the payment of membership dues.

MM stressed the need for continued careful management, and concluded her report by stating that the IAAP finances were in a very good state.

After the presentation the Finance Officer MM opened the floor for discussion.

One delegate commended the Finance Officer on her work and wondered whether maintaining the operating expenses attributed to the Officers and EC Committee was sustainable? MM noted his comment and replied that this was a matter she was aware of and would make every effort to manage in the next administration.

Following this question, the Delegates were asked to vote to accept the Financial Statement.

Vote: Acceptance with one abstention.

MM then went on to present the budget for the subsequent three years.

In response to a question about the budget for the Ethics Committee the President reassured the Delegates that what was budgeted would be sufficient to ensure proper functioning and a face-to-face meeting during the next administration.

Concern was also raised about the Membership dues being set for the next three years in the context of an ageing population.

In response to a question about why the projected expenses are higher than the actual expenses, the Finance Officer explained that this is an accounting safeguard and that she is not anticipating that the EC expenses will be any higher in the next administration.

In the discussion that ensued, one question was raised concerning the level of the EC expenses. There was also an expression of concern as to whether the expenses budgeted for the next administration were not too low.

11. Release of the Executive Committee from liability

Following the discussion on the financial report, the Delegates were asked to vote to release the Executive Committee from liability for financial matters during the previous three-year term of office.

Vote: Accepted with one abstention.

12. Membership Dues

On the basis of the recommendation of the Executive Committee, the Delegates were asked to vote to maintain the IAAP dues at the current rate of 240 CHF for the next three years.

Vote: Accepted with 3 abstentions.

The President thanked Marianne Müller for her outstanding work as Finance Officer.

13. Election of Officers as per Art: 20 of the Constitution

A. Ratify President-Elect

TK asked Marianne Mueller if she was willing to accept this responsibility, and upon her agreement she was then ratified by acclamation as the next President of the IAAP.

B. President-Elect

TK noted that up until the time of these elections, he had received two self-nominations for the office of President-Elect: the two Vice-Presidents from his administration, Angela Connolly and Toshio Kawai. TK asked if there were any additional members who wished to stand for election as President-Elect at this time. Gert Sauer nominated Grazina Gudaite, but she declined.

Angela Connolly and Toshio Kawai then gave short presentations of their candidacy and the delegates were asked to vote by secret ballot.

The result of the election for President-Elect was:

Angela Connolly: 118 votes Toshio Kawai: 207 votes

Toshio Kawai was duly elected as President-Elect.

C. Vice-Presidents

As there were two candidates and no further nominations from the floor, TK asked to suspend the guidelines and to vote by acclamation. The Delegates agreed to vote by a show of hands. The two candidates, Misser Berg and George Hogenson gave short presentations of their candidacy and were elected by acclamation.

D. Honorary Secretary appointed

The newly elected President, Marianne Mueller, announced that Martin Schmidt would serve as Honorary Secretary for the next administration. Martin Schmidt was presented to the Delegates. The outgoing President TK thanked Misser Berg, the outgoing Honorary Secretary, for the enormous amount of work she had done for this administration and for her constant help and support for the President and the Executive Committee.

14. Honorary Members

The President TK informed the Delegates that the EC had recommended five candidates for Honorary Membership. TK asked the Chair of the Honorary Members Sub-Committee, Fred Borchard, to present the criteria and procedure for election to Honorary Membership. Together with two other members of the Sub-Committee, Margaret Klenck and Robert Wimmer, the five nominees were presented: Professor Harald Atmanspacher, Ulrich Hoerni, Andreas Jung, Dr Shinichi Nakazawa, Professor Shizuthera Ueda. All have been carefully vetted by the Sub-Committee and there has been no opposition from the GM Presidents. TK asked to suspend the guidelines and to vote by a show of hands and the Delegates agreed by a show of hands. The Delegates voted by a show of hands to accept all five candidates for Honorary Membership.

Vote: Unanimous

TK informed the Delegates that the Honorary Members would be formally presented to the membership and asked to make a brief statement at the closing ceremony on Friday afternoon. In addition they would also be presented with a plaque as a token of the honor bestowed upon them by the IAAP. TK noted with pleasure that four of the five Honorary Members were present at the Congress: Professor Harald Atmanspacher, Ulrich Hoerni, Andreas Jung, Dr Shinichi Nakazawa. Because of age, Prof. Ueda was unable to attend the Congress.

15. Election of Executive Committee Members

The President TK illustrated the ballot for election of the Executive Committee and asked all those GMs who did not wish to run to declare this so they could be removed from the list. The following GMs stated that they did not wish to be considered at this time and were removed from the list: NAAP and PNSJA. In addition SAP was removed from the list because this GM is represented by the new Honorary Secretary, Martin Schmidt.

TK informed the Delegates that 10 GMs had put forward their candidacy and their presentations were included in the Delegates pack but that this did not restrict the possibility of voting for other eligible GMs.

The Delegates voted by secret ballot and elected the following Group Members to the Executive Committee for the next administration:

IIJP	Israel Institute for Jungian Psychology	235 votes
CGJISF	C.G.Jung Institute San Francisco	227 votes
BJAA	British Jungian Analytic Association	214 votes
DGAP	Deutsche Gesellschaft für Analytische Psychologie	212 votes
SBrPA	Brazilian Society for Analytical Psychology	200 votes
SFPA	Société Française de Psychologie Analytique	197 votes
SUPA	Sociedad Uruguaya de Psicologia Analitica	197 votes
LAAP	Lithuanian Association of Analytical Psychology	183 votes
JPA	Jungian Psychoanalytic Association	177 votes

16. Application of Individual Members.

The President TK informed the delegates that there were 77 new applicants who had successfully completed the IAAP router program and who had been recommended by the Executive Committee to become Individual Members of the IAAP. TK asked the Regional Organizers for each geographical region to read the names of the routers from their region and informed that a special ceremony to present them with a certificate of membership was planned to take place at the time of the closing ceremony on Friday afternoon before the President's farewell address.

Latin America (Misser Berg)

Chile

Bárbara Placencia Bordeu María Teresa Mujica González María Susana Toloza Gallardo María Amelia Herrera Herreros Carolina Mora Nancy Paulsen Marcela Godoy Claudia Beas Arancibia

Colombia

María Claudia Munévar Molano Mónica Pinilla Pineda

Ecuador

Francisco Prado Vladimir Serrano Ana Tibau Silvia Mónica Di Santo

Uruguay

Federico Benchín Bognanno Gastón Di Mauro Cristiani Daniel Davrieux Luciana Narez

Asia and the Chinese Region (Joe Cambray)

Shanghai

Jun Xu

Hong Kong

CHAN Sau Fan Teresa Adelina Wei Kwan Wong

Taipei

Yu-Li Shih Hui-wen Teng (Claire) Hsiu-Chiao Kang Su-Chen Hung

Beijing

LI Ying

India Bangalore

Kolligere. SiddgeGowda . Manasa.

Eastern Europe (Angela Connolly)

Kazakhstan

Anahit Khananyan

Kemerovo

Vera Zabelina

Kiev

Iuliia Kobzieva Tatiana Pervushina Yurii Danko Mark Kryukov Olga Sikorskaya Serhiy Tekyluk

Krasnodar

Irina Donchenko
Inga Hlopina
Irina Khot
Natalia Maystrenko
Tatyana Reznikova
Tatiana Glazunova
Irina Gorlanova
Elena Nikolaeva
Zoya Popova
Andrei Vladimirovich Solonenko
Svetlana Sorokina
Ekaterina Sukhikh
Kristina Topalova
Violetta Yurkova

Georgia

Manana Kechkhuashvili Revaz Korinteli Maia Bochorishvili Manana Dudachava Giorgi Geleishvili

Central Europe (Marianne Mueller)

Bulgaria

Svetlana Nikolkova

Czech Republic

Tomas Holcner

Estonia

Heidi Reiljan

Hungary

Zsolt Deak

Lithuania

Ginta Teivane Jurgita Misiunaite Sigita Kemeriene Egle Beinoriene

Poland, PTPA

Krystyna Weglowska-Rzepa Bartosz S. Samitowski Ewa Winkler Kudasiewicz Jolanta Kowal

Romania

Mihaela Minulescu Daniela Georgeta Ioachimescu Camelia Boanca Lavinia Iuliana Tanculescu Carmen Popescu Elena Cristina Ionescu

Serbia

Elisabetta Iberni

Other (Angela Connolly)

Ireland

Ursula Shields-Huemer

Netherlands

Suzanne van der Akker- van Oosten

Tunisia

Outayl Binous Marie Ardois Before the election took place a question was raised from the floor concerning why so many persons who live close to Zurich did not choose to train in Zurich. The President answered that it was simply financially not feasible for them to do so.

The Delegates were then asked to vote to accept these candidates as Individual Members of the IAAP by a show of hands. It was stated that, as per the Constitution, a 2/3 majority was needed.

Vote: Unanimous

17. Application of Group Members

The President TK listed the applications received by the Group Member Applications Sub-Committee: four applications for Group membership without Training Status and four for Group Membership with Training Status. It was stated that all groups have been carefully vetted by the Sub-Committee and the Ethics Committee.

TK at first presented the four applications for Group membership without Training Status. No negative letters of opinion had been received and all have been recommended by the EC:

- Chilean Society of Analytical Psychology (Sociedad Chilena de Psicologia Analitica Junguiana, SCPA).

Vote: Unanimous

- Colombian Society of Jungian Analysts (Sociedad Colombiana de Analistas Jughuianos (SCAJ).

Vote: Unanimous

Czech Association for Analytical Psychology (CAAP).

Vote: Unanimous

- Finnish-Estonian Group of Analytical Psychology (FEGAP).

Vote: Unanimous

TK then presented three of the four applicants to become Group Members with Training Status. No negative letters of opinion had been received and all have been recommended by the EC:

- Lithuanian Association for Analytical Psychology (LAAP)

Vote in favor: 318

- Mexican Society of C.G. Jung (Sociedad Mexicana C. G. Jung, SOMEJ)

Vote in favor: 314

 Uruguayan-Argentinean Society of Analytical Psychology (Sociedad Uruguaya Argentina de Psicoldoiga Analitica, SUAPA)

Vote in favor: 321

TK informed about the eighth application processed by the Group Member Applications Sub-Committee: the C. G, Jung Institute Zurich, Küsnacht (CGJI). For this application, Marianne Müller recused herself to avoid any possible conflict of interest, given that she is a Past-President of the Swiss Society (SGAP). Angela Connolly stepped in as Chair for this application. The two existing Group Members in Switzerland were asked for a letter of opinion on this application. After careful reflection and consideration of the opinions from AGAP and SGAP, the Executive Committee of the IAAP voted to recommend that the Delegates in Kyoto not accept the application of the C.G. Jung Institute Zurich to become a new Group Member with Training Status

at this time. However, based on information that was presented subsequent to this decision at the Council of Societies, the Executive Committee voted to table the recommendation until the Congress in Kyoto.

The Executive Committee carefully reviewed the application of the CG Jung Institute Zurich. After much deliberation and thoughtful reflection, the Executive Committee recommended that the Delegates vote to accept the request from the CG Jung Institute to form an IAAP Group Member with Training Status.

- C.G. Jung Institute, Zürich (CGJI)

Vote in favor: 260

All eight applicants for Group membership were thus accepted.

18. Ethics Documents

The Chair of the Ethics Committee, Ann Casement (BJAA), presented the revisions to the Ethics Documents. Concerns were raised by Delegates from the UK stating that in their country certain revisions to the Ethics Documents were unworkable as a number of Jungian organisations have outsourced their ethics procedures to the BPC which does not consider ethical concerns in relation to members working abroad. Concerns were also expressed about ethical issues not being dealt with in the country where they occur, including in relation to Skype analysis between countries. Concern was also expressed by Delegates from Europe and the United States about the implications of international law with regard to ethical oversight. Ann Casement (BJAA) clarified that according to the IAAP Constitution Group Members must take responsibility for all their voting members wherever they live.

Following much discussion, a motion was made to exclude the two following statements from the ethics document:

Point 4 of The Responsibilities and Procedures of the Ethics Committee of the IAAP:

Group Members must take responsibility for all their members wherever they may live and/or practice worldwide in processing any complaints.

Point III a of the Guidelines for Minimal Standards in Codes of Ethics for Group Members of the IAAP:

a) Group Members must take responsibility for all their members wherever they may live and/or practice worldwide in processing any complaints.

Vote to accept the proposed motion: Approved with 3 opposed and 7 abstentions.

A motion was then made to refer this issue back to the Ethics Committee for further consideration.

Vote: approved unanimously.

The delegates were then asked to vote to accept the proposed revisions to the Ethics Documents with the 2 points removed.

Vote: Approved with 3 opposed and 9 abstentions.

19. Acknowledgement and Apology

The President TK informed about the development after the Statement of Acknowledgement and Apology had been sent to the President of each Group Member and to the Individual Members at the end of May in preparation for the Meeting of the Delegates.

TK received both very positive and also very negative reactions to the Statement and it became clear that much more discussion on this topic was needed.

In reflecting on the speed with which the statement had been drafted and then sent out, the EC recognized that it had acted much too precipitously and without sufficient consultation on the matter with the membership. After discussion on this matter, the EC decided to recommend to table the vote on this item and to refer it back to the EC. Shortly after this decision, the IAAP received notice from AGAP of their intent to also move to table the vote on this question.

TK then opened the discussion from the floor.

Jan Wiener read the following letter from Andrew Samuels concerning the Statement:

"Dear Friends and Colleagues,

I can't be with you due to a bad accident in mid-August. Having been involved in the initial stages of the composition of this Statement, this is what I would have said if I had been there with you this afternoon:

The Statement does need to go back to the Officers and Executive for further consideration and revision. The focus may need to be less on Jung in his time and more on us in our time today - and what actions we might take in the future. The objections to the wording that make this point have been convincing and extremely thoughtful and useful. Revised versions are already being circulated.

I am personally not sure that much more research or another conference is needed; but that is my perspective. I would agree that we surely can't rush but wouldn't colleagues agree that we might want not to delay inappropriately?

My hope is that, now that the valid objections to this statement as it is written are being heard, we can come up with words that gain consensus support. That would be my ideal - our community acting as one. I am optimistic that we can achieve this.

But please let's not drop the idea of an IAAP public statement in due course.

Thank you from my bed of broken bones!"

As this letter succinctly summarized the general sentiment concerning the Statement and there were no further comments, the President asked the delegates to vote to table this matter and to refer it back to the EC for further consideration.

Vote: Approved with 1 abstention.

20. Request for Individual Membership

The President TK informed the Delegates that four former members of the SFPA had applied to become Individual Members of the IAAP and had requested that the Delegates vote to accept their application.

TK informed about the recommendation from the EC that the Delegates rejected this request for the following reasons:

- 1) The category of Individual Membership is reserved for IAAP members living in a country where there is no established IAAP Group Member.
- 2) Article 6, par. 3 of the Constitution of the IAAP allows for Individual Membership otherwise only in exceptional circumstances. Since these former members did not make use of the Consultation Service and also did not consult the EC on this matter before choosing to leave their Group Member, the EC considered these were not exceptional circumstances.
- 3) To accept this request would completely undermine the established Guidelines for applying to become a Group Member of the IAAP.
- 4) To accept this request would set a dangerous precedent and would encourage splitting among disgruntled or unhappy members in any Group Member to do the same. This would ultimately undermine the very structure and stability of the IAAP.

After this presentation and after having opened the floor for questions of which there were none, the President asked the delegates to vote to reject the request.

Vote to reject this request: Approved with 8 abstentions

21. Next Congress

A. Locations

The President TK informed the Delegates that the EC had received 2 requests to hold the next IAAP congress:

- from AJB and SBrPA the Jungian Association of Brazil and the Brazilian Society for Analytical Psychology in Rio de Janeiro
- from ÖGAP -Österreichische Gesellschaft für Analytische Psychologie in Vienna

B. Advisory Board Report

The Advisory Board, consisting of Murray Stein and Misser Berg, had carefully reviewed the information provided on the sites, on the proposed congress venues, on the congress and financial organization and on travel and accommodation and was happy to report that both bids were in good order and could be considered by the Delegates.

C. Presentations

Alvaro Ancona de Faria presented the proposal of AJB and SBrPA to host the 21st IAAP International Congress in August 2019 in Rio de Janeiro.

Eva Pattis Zoja presented the proposal of ÖGAP to host the 21st IAAP International Congress in August 2019 in Vienna.

The presentation was followed by a short discussion from the floor during which positive and negative aspects of each proposed site were brought to light. Following the discussion, TK asked the Delegates to vote for the site of their choice.

D. Vote

The Delegates then voted and approved Vienna as the site of the 2019 IAAP Congress.

Vienna 173 delegates in favor Rio de Janeiro 148 delegates in favor

E. Suggestions for Themes

After the vote the President asked for suggestions for themes for the next Congress. The following themes were suggested:

- Reconciliation
- Connectedness and Separation
- Multicultural IAAP: Advantages and Disadvantages
- Jungian Psychology and Politics
- Art and Science and the Truth
- Creativity
- Music
- Challenges of the 21st Century
- Analytical Psychologies
- Psychopathology: Jungian Perspectives

22. Any other business

There was no any other business.

23. Adjourn

The President Tom Kelly thanked the Delegates, the Executive Committee and especially the vote counters for a very profitable meeting and adjourned the Meeting of Delegates at 18.00.

Respectfully submitted Misser Berg Honorary Secretary